Hawai'i Interagency Council for Transit-Oriented Development Minutes of Meeting No.45 Friday, September 17, 2021 9:30 am Via Videoconference

Members/

Denise Iseri-Matsubara, Hawai'i Housing Finance and Development Corporation

Designees

(HHFDC), Co-Chair

Present:

Mary Alice Evans, Office of Planning and Sustainable Development (OPSD), Co-Chair

Chris Kinimaka, Department of Accounting and General Services (DAGS)

Randy Tanaka, Department of Education (DOE)

Darrell Ing, Department of Hawaiian Home Lands (DHHL)

Heidi Hansen Smith, Department of Health (DOH)

Malia Taum-Deenik, Department of Human Services (DHS)

Ian Hirokawa, Department of Land and Natural Resources (DLNR)

Wayne Takara, Department of Public Safety (PSD) David Rodriguez, Department of Transportation (DOT)

Carson Schultz, Hawai'i Community Development Authority (HCDA)

Hakim Ouansafi, Hawai'i Public Housing Authority (HPHA)

John Fink, Stadium Authority (SA)

Michael Shibata, University of Hawai'i (UH)

Representative Nadine Nakamura, House of Representatives

Senator Lorraine Inouye, State Senate Senator Chris Lee, State Senate

Harrison Rue, City and County of Honolulu (City) April Surprenant, County of Hawai'i (COH)

Jodi Higuchi Sayegusa, County of Kaua'i (COK)

Pam Eaton, County of Maui (COM)

Scott Kami, Bank of Hawai'i, Business Community Representative

Kevin Carney, EAH Housing, Housing Advocate

Laura Kodama, Castle and Cooke, Developer Representative

Ryan Okahara, U.S. Housing & Urban Development, Honolulu Office (HUD) (Ex-

officio)

Members/

Sara Lin, Office of the Governor

Designees Excused:

Other Dean Minakami, HHFDC Designees/ David DePonte, DAGS

Alternates Roy Ikeda, DOE Present: Ben Park, HPHA

Carleton Ching, UH Celia Mahikoa, COK

TOD Council

Staff:

Rodney Funakoshi, OPSD Ruby Edwards, OPSD Carl Miura, OPSD

Guests: Audrey Hidano, DAGS

Kalani Fronda, Office of Hawaiian Affairs (OHA)

Franz Krainz, City Department of Planning and Permitting (DPP)

Aaron Setogawa, OPSD

Alisa Hanselman, COH

Alison Kato, Attorney General

Andrew Tang, HPHA

Bill Brizee, AHL Design

Bonnie Arakawa, UH-West Oʻahu

Brad Knowlton, Senator Lorraine Inouye's Office

Brandon Sekiya, City Council Member Say's Office

Brian Lee, Hawai'i LECET/Honolulu Planning Commission

Office of Council Member Calvin Say

David Arakawa, Land Use Research Foundation (LURF)

Derek Wong, DLNR

George Atta

John Andoh, County of Hawai'i Mass Transit Agency

Kevin Auger, HPHA

Kiana Otsuka, Oʻahu Metropolitan Planning Organization (OMPO)

Lauren Yasaka, DLNR

Melvia Kawashima

Nancy McPherson, DHHL

Zoe Sims, Representative David Tarnas' Office

Pane Meatoga III, Hawai'i Operating Engineers Industry Stabilization Fund (HOEISF)

Parker Kushima

Randy Chu, HHFDC

Wade Lord, COK Mayor's Office

Zendo Kern, COH Planning Department

1. Call to Order

Denise Iseri-Matsubara, Co-chair, called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.

2. Introduction of Members

Members and guests introduced themselves. Guest introductions were skipped to accommodate a full agenda.

3. Review and Approval of Minutes of September 17, 2021 Meeting

The July 16, 2021 meeting minutes were approved as circulated.

4. Permitted Interaction Groups (PIGs) for State & County TOD Implementation

- A. Discussion of Permitted Interaction Groups Established in 2018 and 2020
 - East Kapolei, Hālawa-Stadium, and Iwilei-Kapālama PIGs, O'ahu, 2018
 - West Hawai'i and East Hawai'i PIGs, 2018
 - Maui PIG, 2018
 - Kaua'i PIG, 2018
 - Neighbor Islands PIG, 2018
 - Affordable Housing PIG, 2020
 - Infrastructure Investment Strategy PIG, 2020

Iseri-Matsubara explained that Rodney Funakoshi and Ruby Edwards summarized the PIG reports from the PIGs formed in 2018 and 2020 at the July meeting. The reports were included in the meeting materials for the July meeting and posted to the TOD Council meeting materials webpage. No comments were provided by the Council members.

Action: It was moved by Representative Nakamura and approved by the Council to accept the reports and dissolve PIGs listed above.

B. Proposal to Establish a TOD Transit and Mobility PIG

• The purpose of the TOD Transit and Mobility PIG is to review State and County transportation policies and priorities with respect to how they support TOD. Iseri-Matsubara reported that Senator Chris Lee inquired at the last meeting whether a transit PIG could be formed to investigate the degree to which current State/County transportation project priorities support TOD and TOD objectives in each county. After a discussion with him, the Co-chairs recommended the establishment of a TOD Transit and Mobility PIG to investigate alignment between transportation policies and priorities and TOD efforts and to develop recommendations for better alignment. Senator Lee and David Rodriguez from DOT will serve as co-chairs. The members, tasks, and timeline were outlined in the Proposed TOD Transit and Mobility PIG, Tasks and Work Plans.

Senator Lee said he saw an opportunity especially with the upcoming federal investment in infrastructure and transit to figure out how the State can maximize those dollars and projects. He does not want to see any missed opportunities. In the "Charge for Investigation," he suggested adding policies and procedures to solicit input from stakeholder groups like the TOD Council before decisions are made by DOT. Under "Tasks", he wants to add identifying model TOD communities, the relationship between their TOD entities, and determine successful TOD outcomes. Also, he would like to consider inviting experts and stakeholders from these areas for their input.

Rodriguez read a statement from the Deputy Director of Highways which said he is looking forward to working with developers in the TOD areas to maximize affordable housing and multi-modal access. He is concerned about what type of investments DOT can make to incentivize developers to maximize future affordable housing that require multi-modal access. He is also working with State agencies to manage and build housing to update multi-modal access to existing developments and to fund these improvements.

In response to Franz Krainz, Edwards explained that the intent is to have OMPO and Maui MPO (Maui Metropolitan Planning Organization) engaged in this PIG. The members can identify other stakeholders that are not TOD Council members to participate in these meetings. Kevin Carney asked that he does not see a housing member. Edwards will look into adding more members to the group, but the PIG needs to stay below quorum, which is 12 people. There is no limit to the number of non-Council members that are invited. This is not a public forum.

Hawai'i Interagency Council for Transit-Oriented Development Minutes of September 17, 2021 Meeting Page 4

Action: It was moved by Senator Inouye and approved by the Council to establish TOD Transit and Mobility PIG.

5. FY22 Statewide TOD CIP Planning Funds, Act 88, SLH 2021

- Projects Selected for Funding
 Mary Alice Evans announced that \$1.5 million of TOD CIP funds was appropriated to OPSD to
 provide seed money to public agencies to advance TOD projects in the State TOD Strategic
 Plan. Six proposals were received. Each proposal made a compelling case for funding and
 implementation of TOD. The OPSD Evaluation Team determined that each project was at a
 critical juncture where funding it now would contribute significantly to project success. The
 Team decided to fund all the proposals, but at reduced levels.
 - County of Kaua'i, Līhu'e Civic Center Redevelopment Plan, Līhu'e, Kaua'i; \$350,000. Jodi Higuchi Sayegusa explained that the Līhu'e Town Core Urban Design Plan's main vision for Līhu'e Civic Center Redevelopment Plan is to have it become more than a government and job center. There is little to no activity in the evenings and weekends, so they are hoping it can be an area where people can live, work, and play. The civic center redevelopment is key to the revitalization of the area, which is within walking distance to not-for-profit service providers, post office, Kaua'i Museum, library, school, parks, convention center, and hospital. Several housing projects are nearby including Rice Camp Senior Housing, Līhu'e Court Townhomes, and Pua Loke affordable housing. Also, Kūhiō Highway and Rice Streets are the major thoroughfares running along the Civic Center. The 'Ewa Street Transit Hub was completed recently providing bus access, electrical charging stations, etc. The funding will be used to study some of the barriers and pathways for redevelopment. They would like to use the site to address the need for more affordable/middle income housing, accessible childcare, and determine the scale based on market conditions.
 - <u>UH-West O'ahu, Urban Design Plan (UDP) Update, East Kapolei, O'ahu; \$125,000.</u>
 Bonnie Arakawa explained that the initial UDP was done in 2011 for the non-campus lands. City DPP requires it for development of large tracts of land. Once East Kapolei TOD Plan was adopted by the City Council in 2020, this made their UDP somewhat inconsistent. If a developer wants to build in this area now, they will run into problems and delays. To prevent it, UDP needs to be updated in consultation with large landowners like DLNR and DHHL to make sure everyone is aligned. After it is adopted, then the next step is to obtain the zoning and zoning maps. In addition to inconsistencies, they will be looking at density, uses, and State TOD Strategic Plan Principles. With this effort, they are hoping to make their lands as attractive as possible to a future developer.
- DLNR, East Kapolei Illustrative Conceptual Master Plan for TOD parcels, Oʻahu; \$300,000. Ian Hirokawa reported that DLNR has four parcels in East Kapolei. The Illustrative Conceptual Master Plan is focusing on the parcels located between Kualakaʻi Parkway, the freeway, and Hoʻopili. The upper and lower parcels are split in the middle by Farrington Highway. The lower parcel adjacent to the rail station is considered phase 1 and department's top priority. They are proposing a TOD mixed-use project that includes affordable housing, office, retail, and light industrial. The upper parcel is phase 2 and will

have light industrial on the westside and affordable housing on the east. They are planning to work with HHFDC on the housing. Right now, the project is in the EIS Phase. The goal is to eventually lease out these properties to generate income for the department, support the community's needs, provide public benefits, and serve as a job center.

HPHA, Kahekili Terrace Redevelopment Conceptual Master Plan, Wailuku, Maui; \$225,000.

Kevin Auger explained that Kahekili Terrace Site A is the primary focus of the redevelopment. It is located between Holowai Place and North Market Street on 3.8 acres of land with 10 two- and three-story buildings providing 60 housing units. Area is served by the County of Maui public bus system and is near the Wailuku Parking Garage, Wailuku Civic Center, and Wells Park Redevelopment. Since the facility was built in 1966, this presents an opportunity to rebuild low-income housing stock and address soil contamination. The project must go through an environmental review under HRS 343 and National Environmental Protection Act (NEPA). It also required to go through the National Historic Preservation Act process. The master plan will examine how additional density can deliver more affordable housing units by looking at the appropriate demographic mix, infrastructure requirements, multi-modal connectivity, and accessibility opportunities to the surrounding area.

• HPHA, Pu'uwai Momi Redevelopment Conceptual Master Plan, Hālawa, O'ahu; \$400,000. Auger pointed out that Pu'uwai Momi is an attractive area for redevelopment since it is adjacent to the Hālawa Rail Station and near the New Aloha Stadium Entertainment District (NASED). It is an opportunity to introduce higher density based on the City's Hālawa Area TOD Plan. The current 27 two- and three-story buildings providing 260 units were constructed in 1969 on a 11.5-acre site. It has the potential to provide between 1,300-1,500 affordable units. Pu'uwai Momi has a one-for-one replacement requirement for the public housing units. The project would require federal and State environmental review. The CIP grant would fund a preliminary master plan, assess infrastructure needs and make sure it complements and integrates NASED.

• County of Hawai'i, Pāhoa Transit Hub Site Selection/Conceptual Master Plan, Pāhoa, Hawai'i; \$100,000.

John Andoh stated that the objective of the grant is to: 1) Select a site that is most appropriate to facilitates transit ridership and active transportation; 2) Complete an Environmental Assessment; and 3) Incorporate mobility hub concepts to provide an engaging community space. In August 2018, County of Hawai'i adopted a Transit and Multi-Modal Transportation Master Plan, which restructured the Hele-On Network. The "Hub and Spoke" model started operating on September 5, 2021. As part of the study, they are planning to incorporate housing. In the future transit hub, they would like to have a park ride lot, at least five bus bays, electric charging stations, bike lockers, good sidewalks, multipurpose building (e.g., ticket office, library, restrooms, etc.), and security. The preferred site needs to be able accommodate easy access for large buses, proximity to businesses and other trip producing activities, and publicly owned. They will acquire the property if necessary.

Senator Lee asked what does connectivity to UH-West Oʻahu look like for the projects. Ian Hirokawa explained that DLNR's interior roads in Phase 3 parcel are designed to connect to their on-campus roads. For the East Kapolei TOD Plan, Harrison Rue elaborated that the City looked at connectivity with various agencies and DR Horton. When Hoʻopili was being developed, they asked them to show which roads in their master plan would connect to the adjacent State properties. On the DLNR parcel with a large gully, the City required DR Horton to provide a connection across it. They also asked UH-West Oʻahu to connect some of their roads in the future. As this area develops, more intersections may need to be installed. There is also good bike and pedestrian connectivity. Bonnie Arakawa noted that they were in discussions with DOT regarding Farrington Highway Widening Project. Based on their plans, it looks like the Keahumoa Parkway will continue from the Kroc Center intersection to Farrington Highway. DOT also granted them two more points of connection along Farrington Highway near the Hawaiʻi Electric Company (HECO) substation and Tokai University.

Edwards suggested that this might be good time to get the agencies together to improve connectivity among Hoʻopili, UH-West Oʻahu, DLNR, DOT, and Kualakaʻi Parkway. Representative Nakamura inquired whether bike and pedestrian access have been incorporated by DOT into the Farrington Highway Widening Project Design. Rodriguez said he does not have any update at this time.

Pam Eaton asked what are the timing and steps to be taken to address soil contamination issues at Kahekili Terrace Project. Hakim Ouansafi said HPHA has been working with DOH and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) on a plan. They have done temporary mitigation and hired a consultant to permanently take care of the site.

6. TOD Project Updates by State and County Agencies

Iseri-Matsubara explained that the purpose of this update is to allow the agency responsible for the project to provide key project information. The overall objective is to make sure the State and counties are aligned.

Department of Hawaiian Home Lands

- <u>Ka'uluokaha'i Increment II-A, Multi-Family/Commercial</u>. Darrell Ing reported that the project was originally planned for about 250 single family lots. They are looking into changing the designation to multi-family and adding some commercial. The Legislature approved \$5.132 million appropriation in 2021. A request for proposals should be going out late 2021 or early next year. The biggest challenge is the possibility of finding red ilima, an endangered plant species, on the property. As the taking license has expired, the development could be delayed.
- <u>Moanalua Kai Conceptual Plans</u>. This project is on hold with various lease expiration dates well into the future. The area is experiencing sea level rise and king tide issues.
- <u>Kapālama Project Conceptual Plan</u>. This project is on hold due to a general lease that expires in 2045. A portion of the City Square Shopping Center is owned by Kamehameha Schools. Their development plans are going to concentrate on the mauka side of Dillingham Boulevard.

Representative Nakamura asked if there is a timeframe to deal with the red ilima issue. Ing said there are no plans for a botanical study. Before issuing the RFP they may work with DLNR-

Division of Forestry and Wildlife to do a sweep of the area. Senator Inouye suggested looking at the work done at La'i'ōpua in West Hawai'i back in the 1990's as a possible model.

Iseri-Matsubara inquired if 250 multi-family homes is the target now. Ing said it is a placeholder. RFP is going to be left open for the developer to determine. They would like to get it dense as possible without overcrowding. Carney requested to find out the level of AMI for the multi-family project. Ing answered that they left it up to the developer depending on their projections, availability of low-income tax credits, and cash flow.

University of Hawai'i

- <u>UH-West O'ahu</u>. In addition to the Farrington Highway Widening, Bonnie Arakawa mentioned that they are coordinating with DOT on UH West O'ahu's University District, Long Range Development Plans (LRDP), TOD Infrastructure, and Multi-Campus Housing Projects. PBR Hawai'i is working with them on the LRDP. They are hoping to complete it in about six months and take it to the UH Board of Regents.
- Other UH Projects. No Updates.

Department of Land and Natural Resources

• East Kapolei Master Development Plan. Hirokawa reported that they are starting the EIS process. In 2019, they received a \$1 million appropriation to conduct an environmental studies and planning. The contract has been awarded, and consultant is onboard. The EISPN should be completed in the first half of 2022. At the same time, they are updating their marketing studies and refining their master plan, which is being funded by the FY22 TOD CIP Planning Funds. They will also continue to coordinate with other agencies.

Iseri-Matsubara asked if DLNR is still planning to develop 1,000 housing units. Hirokawa confirmed the amount and added that number came from their strategic development plan. It will be further refined with EIS and through the forthcoming master plan.

Department of Education

• East Kapolei High School. Roy Ikeda explained that DOE has a 50-acre site selected at the mauka area of the Hoʻopili development. The project is in the environmental review and community engagement phase. They are reconsidering how they plan to design and construct the school. The construction timetable has not been determined, but it is somewhat dependent on DR Horton's further development of the Hoʻopili Project and getting surface roads. Also, one of unknowns is the access to and building of Farrington Highway.

Iseri-Matsubara requested if they could turn in their TOD Project Update information. She asked if the new School Facility Agency (SFA), which was approved this year, is supposed to take on these types of construction projects. Ikeda answered that it is the expectation. The SFA still needs to be organized, staffed, and operated. She also asked them to submit their report using the spreadsheet that was provided.

• <u>Pohukaina Elementary School</u>. Ikeda reported that DOE has met with HHFDC on the project after a brief hold. They are re-doing the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to push forward on the affordable housing and educational components. Dean Minakami said they are going to issue an RFP for the master planning. They will be working with DOE on the

programming requirements, which needs to be integrated into a site plan. The MOU will be issued in the next several months.

Department of Transportation

• <u>Farrington Highway Widening</u>. Rodriguez mentioned that he has not gotten an update to report as yet. DOT Highways is working with State, county, and private developers. Iseri-Matsubara requested that they provide a report to the Council at the next meeting.

Since time was running short, the agency TOD Project Updates was paused and will continue with HPHA at the November meeting.

7. Infrastructure Financing Study, Act 88, SLH 2021, Section 39 Budget Proviso

• Edwards presented an overview for the TOD Infrastructure Financing Study as outlined in the proviso. At the end of July, OPSD has a brainstorming session to discuss the scope and consultant criteria. The RFP (RFP-22-01-OPSD) was posted on September 1 on the State Procurement Office HANDS website. The desired outcomes include analysis of finances for specific tools to use for one TOD pilot area in each county and needed to implement use of those tools. It will have advisory groups including a steering committee for project management, project advisory group made up of key decision makers identified in the proviso, and PIGs for each county. The Project Advisory Group will act as a sounding board for ideas, problem solving, etc.

Several key considerations for the consultant include team presence in Hawai'i and team familiarity with Hawai'i. Facilitation and group process management will be important for presentation(s) to TOD Council and briefings for other key stakeholders.

The TOD pilot areas identified for each county are: Iwilei-Kapālama on Oʻahu; Līhuʻe Town core on Kauaʻi; and Kaʻahumanu Community Corridor for Maui. For Hawaiʻi County, the area will be determined in the next month or so. Specific boundaries will be worked out in PIGs.

The deadline for proposals is October 8, 2021. The award should be in December or January 2022. The project timeframe is expected to be 18-24 months.

8. TOD Implementation PIGs for O'ahu and Neighbor Islands

• Evans explained that at its July meeting the TOD Council approved four PIGs: 1 for O'ahu and 1 for each Neighbor Island County. Based on OIP rules, the number of TOD Council members on a PIG cannot exceed the number for quorum—which is 12 members. Several TOD Council members requested to serve on all four PIGS, and Maui County requested that DOH serve as the twelfth PIG member for the Maui PIG. The final TOD Council member assignments are provided on the Work Plans in the meeting packet. The final twelfth spot for TOD Council members for the four PIGs was filled as follows: 1) Housing Advocate/Kevin Carney has been added to the O'ahu Affordable Housing/State TOD Implementation and the Hawai'i County/State TOD Alignment and Implementation PIGs; and 2) DOH/Heidi Hansen-Smith has been added to the Maui County and Kaua'i County/State TOD Alignment and Implementation PIGs. OPSD staff will be contacting PIG co-chairs to develop meeting schedules and next steps for each PIG. The first meetings are anticipated be held in October.

9. Upcoming Meetings and Agenda Items

Hawai'i Interagency Council for Transit-Oriented Development Minutes of September 17, 2021 Meeting Page 9

- State/County Agency TOD Project Updates Standing Reports
 Iseri-Matsubara announced that we will hearing from members on TOD Project Updates in November.
- October 2021 No Meeting
- November 19, 2021 Review of Draft Annual Report
 Proposals for 2022 Legislative Session
 2021 Calendar for TOD Council Meetings

10. Announcements

• HCPO (Virtual) Conference 2021, October 4-8, Lunchtime Series. Registration is now open.

Rue announced that the City removed all of the parking requirements in the urban area and drastically cut the amounts for the rest of the island. He will be asking his staff to provide a summary so that it can be distributed to all of the agencies. He is also willing to do a short presentation.

Eaton asked which meeting will the TOD Council have the county updates. Edwards confirmed it will be the next meeting scheduled in November.

11. Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 11:15 a.m.

Note: All meeting materials are posted at http://planning.hawaii.gov/lud/state-tod/hawaii-interagency-council-for-transit-oriented-development-meeting-materials/.